10.
11.
12.

13.
14.

Village of Oxford Planning Commission Agenda
Tuesday, June 18, 2024, 7:00 P.M.
Council Chambers located at:
22 W Burdick Street, Oxford, MI
Tel: 248-628-2543

Call to Order: Chairman Jon Nold

Respects to the Flag

Roll Call: Justin Ballard, Scott Flynn, CJ Gozdor, Maureen Helmuth, Jon Nold, Leslie
Pielack, Tom Schultz.

Approval of Agenda: June 18, 2024
Approval of Minutes: May 7, 2024

Public Hearing:
a. Special Use Signs- Pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Section 7.4.8(F)(2)(b).
51 S. Washington. Maximum Surface Display Are of a Projecting Wall Sign.

b. Conditional Rezoning-Washington Triangle- Conditional Rezoning from R-1
Residential to RM Multi-family, Owner-Occupied Townhouse Style Units.

Call To Public

New Business:
a. PC 24-07, Special Use Signs, pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Section
7.4.8(F)(2)(b). 51 S. Washington, Oxford, MI. 48371. Maximum Surface Display Are
of a Projecting Wall Sign. PID # PO-04-27-202-035. Zoning C-1 Core, Commercial
District. Applicant The Good Egg Breakfast Café, owner Familia Properties, LLC,
Applicant Kal Mansour.

b. PC 24-08, Conditional Rezoning Request from R-1 Residential to RM Multi-
family, Owner-Occupied Townhouse Style Units. Area known as South Washington
Triangle. Parcel ID # PO-04-24-278-020. Property owner Oakland County Holdings
LLC. Applicant: Gravel Development Group.

Old Business:
a. Review Landscaping Ordinance Draft Amendments.

Public Comment
Consultant & Administration Comments

Reports: Oxford Township Planning Commission
ZBA
DDA

Commissioner Comments

Adjournment



fa—
OO0 AN BRWN -

B0 L L L L WL L LW NN NN NN
SORXIAARA LA~ S e ISR RNEEsIaarnnD

41
42
43
44
45
46

VILLAGE OF OXFORD
PLANNING COMMISSION
May 7, 2024 - 7:00 p.m.
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Meeting Location = 22 W Burdick Street, Oxford, MI = Tel: (248) 628-2543
www.thevillageofoxford.org

CALL TO ORDER The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m.

RESPECTS TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL: Members Present: 5. CJ Gozdor, Maureen Helmuth Jon Nold Leslie Pielack,
Tom Schultz. Absent: 2. Justin Ballard, Scott Flynn. Staff Present Recordlng Secretary Tere
Onica, Village Manager Joe Madore, Planner Mario Ortega.

MOTION: by Helmuth/Nold to excuse the absence of Justm Ballard and Scott Flynn All in favor.

Motion adopted.

W=

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Meeting Agenda May 7,2024. o
MOTION: by Schultz/Helmuth approving the May 7, 2024 agenda as presented
All in favor. Motion adopted. :

5. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES March 19, 2024 'R‘egular Meeting Minutes.
MOTION: by Gozdor/Helmuth approvmg the March 19, 2024, meetmg minutes as presented.
All in favor. Motion adopted. ; e e

6. PUBLIC HEARING: Special Land Use Apphcatlon 20 Church Street PID # 04-22-455-004.
Pick-Up Window pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Section 4.1.13. Zoning I-1, Industrial District.
The purpose of the public hearlng is to receive comments from the public on the proposed Special

Land Use Application.
MOTION: by Pielack/Schultz to open the pubhc hearmg at 7:04 p.m.
Roll Call Vote: Ayes: 5. Plelack Helmuth, Schultz Gozdor, Nold. Nays: 0. Absent: 2. Ballard,

Flynn.
Public Comment‘s""l\lene
;MOTION by Helmuth/Plelack to close the public hearing at 7:04 p.m. All in favor. Motion
adopted.
7, CORRESPONDENCE; None
8. CALLTO PUBLIC{/NO comments.

9. NEW BUSINESS:
a. PC 24-05, Sign Permit Application, 51 S. Washington St. Suite A, Oxford, MI. 48371. PID #

P0O-04-27-202-035. Zoning C-1 Core, Commercial District. Applicant The Good Egg
Breakfast Café, owner Familia Properties, LLC, Mark Gjokaj.

Planner Ortega reviewed the sign design with commissioners. The sign face area exceeds 16
square feet (SF) in area as required in Section 7.4.8 (F)(2)(b) of the zoning ordinance.



Viillage of Oxford Planning Commission
Regular Meeting Minutes
May 7, 2024

47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92

Illumination will have minimal impact, but the applicant failed to indicate the type of material
for the sign face. A photometric sensor with automatic dimmer control module with a
luminance level not to exceed 100 cd/m2 from dusk to dawn was stipulated for approval.

The size of the sign was compared to the prior existing sign (51-Diner) with pictures on the TV
screen showing the signs. Both signs projected from the wall face into the right-of-way. The
sign design aesthetics were discussed. The applicant was not present for discussion.
MOTION: by Helmuth/Schultz to deny the sign application for 51 S. Washington St. Suite A,
Oxford, MI. 48371. PID # PO-04-27-202-035 because it did not meet the size requirement of
Section 7.4.8(F)(2)(b).

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: 4. Schultz, Gozdor, Helmuth, Nold. Nays: 1. Pielack. Absent: 2.
Ballard, Flynn. Motion to deny adopted.

b. PC 24-06, Special Land Use, Drive Through Window Pre-Order Pick-Up, 20 Church

Street, Oxford, MI. 48371, Parcel ID # PO-04-22-455-004. Zoning I-1, Industrial District.
Applicant and Owner: 20 Church St. LLC. Planner Ortega reviewed the Special Land Use
location, existing conditions, and proposed use. ROWE engineering comments were discussed
regarding the modifications to the south and west sides of the property. There were concerns
over the turning radius of a vehicle to avoid the concrete bump out in relation to the location of
the pick-up window. Wait times and stacking distance were discussed. Signage is necessary to
provide directional aid to drivers. The proximity of the proposed island encroaches on the
existing leaching basin #8. The recommendation to shorten the length of the island in this area

‘was suggested to avoid blocking the intended drainage course.

The plan was compatible with adjacent uses and zoning with no adverse impact on surrounding
land uses. Police Department comments were that the pick-up window would not be a traffic
issue unless the popularity of its’ convenience grew. It appeared to be a safer alternative than
the existing curbside service. There was no objection from the fire department as long as the
bypass for the drive-through lane remained accessible for cars to exit the lot.

The applicant was open to design changes, removal of the concrete bump out and reduction of
size of the proposed island delineating between the bypass lane and drive-through window.
Signage indicating that the pick-up window was for on-line orders only was agreed to. The
applicants’ experience with curbside order pick-up and number of cars waiting was not more
than three or four vehicles. Car volume increases would be occasional and related to certain
days like a weekend, but the applicants did not foresee that car stacking would become an issue
based on other stores’ patterns of activity. They were willing and in agreement to make
whatever changes were deemed necessary for safety and compliance with the ordinance.
MOTION: by Gozdor/Schultz to approve the Special Land Use for 20 Church St., PID# 04-22-
455-004, Rush Cannabis Drive-Through Window, contingent upon the applicant meeting the
recommendations of the McKenna review letter dated April 29, 2024, the ROWE Engineering
email review dated May 7, 2024, elimination of the concrete bump out curb design and
shortening the length of the proposed new island to avoid encroaching on the five (5) foot
diameter drainage structure. An amendment was offered by Helmuth, supported by Gozdor and
Shultz to adjust the light levels in the parking lot Northwest corner if needed to improve
visibility of directional/instructional signage for on-line order pick-up.

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: 5. Helmuth, Schultz, Gozdor, Pielack, Nold. Nays: 0.

2



93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123

Viillage of Oxford Planning Commission
Regutar Meeting Minutes
May 7, 2024

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Absent: 2. Ballard, Flynn. Special Land Use is granted with contingencies noted.

OLD BUSINESS:
a. Landscaping Ordinance Amendments- Review and Discussion. Review was postponed.
Planner Ortega will present comments in an upcoming meeting when hopefully all commissioners

can be present.

PUBLIC COMMENT: S

Kyle Morski and his wife, 22 N. Washinton asked for consideration on a zoning ordinance
amendment for the size of sign on allowed on their building. They own a vintage building with 57
lineal feet of frontage on M-24. They would like to be able to replace the Williams Glass wall
sign with a more proportionate wall sign that would exceed 30 SF.

CONSULTANT & ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS-

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS '

Oxford Township Planning Commission-Update by Comrmssmner Nold.
ZBA-No meeting.

DDA — Update by Village Manager.

FUTURE BUSINESS: The village manager reported a Special Land Use potential plan for the
S. Washington Triangle. The preliminary plan is for a single-family owner-occupied townhouse
style unit. This will require a public hearing. An applicatibn has not yet been submitted.

ADJOURNMENT: Wlth no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 8:32 p.m.
MOTION: by HelmuthlPlelack All in favor. Motion adopted.

Respectfully submitted,
Tere Onica, Recording Secretary



VILLAGE OF OXFORD
PUBLIC HEARING
SPECIAL USE SIGNS
Pursuant to the provisions of Village of Oxford Zoning Ordinance, the Village of Oxford
Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, June 18, 2024, beginning at
7:00 p.m. (or soon thereafter) in the Oxford Village Council Chambers located at 22 W.
Burdick, Oxford, Michigan 48371 to consider the following:

Applicant: Kal Mansour, Familia Properties, LLC.

Location: 51 S. Washington St., STE A

Parcel ID: PO-04-27-202-035

Zoning:  C-1, Commercial Core

Request:  Pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Section 7.4.8(F)(2)(b) Maximum
surface display area of a projecting wall sign

Comments regarding this Special Use Signs Permit Application can be made to:
Village of Oxford Planning Commission, P.O. Box 94, Oxford, MI 48371.
Written request may be made in person, during the meeting, or in writing to: Jon
Nold, Chairperson, or email comments to clerk@thevillageofoxford.org. Persons
requiring assistance at the meeting are asked to contact the Clerk’s office during
regular business hours: Monday-Thursday 8:00 am-5:00 p.m. (248)-628-2543, no
less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting if special accommodation is needed.

Jon Nold
Planning Commission Chair
Published May 29, 2024, Oxford Leader



VILLAGE OF OXFORD
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

Conditional Rezoning — Washington Triangle

The Village of Oxford Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on
Tuesday, June 18, 2024, beginning at 7:00 p.m. (or soon thereafter) in the
Oxford Village Council Chambers located at 22 W. Burdick, Oxford,
Michigan 48371 to consider the following:

Applicant: Gravel Development Group, LLC

Property Owner: Oakland County Holdings, LLC

Location: Area known as South Washington Triangle

Parcel ID: PO-04-27-278-020

Zoning: R-1 Single Family District

Request: Conditional Rezoning from R-1 residential to RM Multi-
family, owner-occupied townhouse style units

The proposed conditional rezoning application is available for public review
at the Village of Oxford Clerk’s Office during normal business hours
Monday-Thursday 8:00 a.m.- 5:00 p.m. and is posted online at
www.thevillageofoxford.org under the Planning Commission agenda packet
for June 18, 2024. Comments regarding this request may be made in person
during the meeting, or in writing to: Jon Nold, Chairperson, Village of
Oxford Planning Commission, P.O. Box 94, Oxford, MI 48371. Anyone
with special needs requiring assistance at the meeting should contact the
Clerk’s office not less than seventy-two (72) hours in advance of the
meeting.

Jon Nold

Planning Commission Chairperson
22 W Burdick, Oxford MI 48371
Publish Oxford Leader 05/29/2024



VILLAGE OF OXFORD .
Building Services Department - — (

22 West Burdick, P.O. Box 94 HEES DIREN ( /

Oxford, MI 48371-0094 ) 0 !

E-Mail: office@thevillageofoxford.org ' N
2418—258-(2)5‘;3(!( evl ﬂgCO oxiorda.or PO 2‘ \_/I P 0 /{
SIGN PERMIT APPLICATION G) B o L( -0 g)

Applicationishereby made fora permit toINSTALL/ALTERa signon the following property:
1. Application and Review fees must be included with application
2. Two (2) sets of plan are required per Chapter 4 (Sign Ordinance).

LOCATION:_51 S Washington St, Ste A siweir_Y0-0t- A7]- 202 N3AS

Name of Business: The Good Egg Breakfast Cafe

Owner Phone: Mark Gjokaj 248-917-7216

Name of Business Owner:_Familia Properties, LLC

Contractor Name:_Kal Mansour - Sign Emporium Inc License/Expiration date: 12-31-24
Address: 11035 E 9 Mile Rd City: Warren State: Ml Zip: 48089
Phone: 586-576-7901 Email: Signsbykal@gmail.com

Applicant's Signature: ]L—

Type of Sign (Fill in Only Those that Apply)

Height:

GROUND Sign Area:

(not including base or supports)
(including base or supports)

Linear Width of Storefront or Building Frontage

WALL Sign Area:
Area of any eisting or proposed projecting signs:

WINDOW Sign Area: Dimensions of window(s)

PROJECTING_S0"X67"_Sign Area: __23sq ft _ Area of any existing or proposed wall signs:

MARQUEE Sign Area:
**PLEASE NOTE THAT MARQUEE SIGNS REQUIRE PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVAL**

TEMPORARY BANNER Sign Area: Proposed d’ates of display:

A-FRAME Sign Area: Height: Materials:

Upduated 006/30/2(0)



SPECIAL LAND USE

Special Land Use approval is required for proposed signs that do not meet the specific requirements of
the Ordinance. Special Land Use requires Planning Commission approval after a public hearing.

Do you wish to apply for Special Land Use approval? O No B Yes

PC DESIGN APPROVAL

Planning Commission Design approval is required for all internally illuminated signs in the C-1 Core
and C-1 Transition zoning districts.

Do you wish to apply for PC Design Approval? 0 No Yes

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

+ Attach a drawing of the location of the sign(s) on the building and/or site.

» Attach a picture of the proposed design of the sign (placeholders may be used if content has not
yet been determined).

+  All permanent signs must be approved by the Building Department prior to installation.

* Inspection will be required when instailation is complete. Contact Village of Oxford to schedule
the inspection.

FEES
Application Fee ... 515
Permit Fee per sigh......ccccoco v, $85
Contractor Registration Fee ................... §15

seofe sk e ok SRR o sk ok ko R OB ok R ok R sk ok ok R R Sk ok sk R e sk ok ok ok

Special Land Use Fee (if needed) ........... $300
Public Hearing Fee (for SLU) ................. S150

s 3k sk vk ol sfe ke sk sie sk she s s ke o st 2k S ksl o sk ok ofe sk ok ofe ofe Sfe sk ook sk sk sk ks ke b sk ek ek

PC Design Approval ... 5150

o0
TOTAL FEES: HE0-

___APPROVED DISAPPROVED

Signature of Building inspectlor Date

Updated (06730720



Double-Sided Lit Blade Sign

58"

50"

for verification of spelling, layout, color and composition. (PLEASE HELP AVOID UNNE
authorization to proceed with specifications and conditions of this document as
used without expressed written permission of Sign Emporium.

Approval:

G‘@
EG
gREAKFAST CAFEd
FOR 208 OPCORTUMTIES
PLEASE EMAL:
heloCroesodectret foatxte com
G orepesiggrrostancate

Mounting Detail

After

%ign Description

| The Good Egg

[Date:
o 3.723

Site Address: 51 S Washinglon St
Oxlord, MI 48371

Contact Info:

Landlord Info:

Photo of Suite:

Meas. of Suite:

Site Plan:

.Eps Artwork:

Check Sign Ordinance:

Wall Color SW#:

Landlord Approval:

Permits Needed:

Date:

ACCEPTANCE OF ARTWORK The drawing above is an artistic representation ONLY. Elements may vary based on field measurements. This color proof is intended
CESSARY COSTS BY CHECKING THIS PROOF CAREFULLY.) Signature constitutes, SI ( l\
specified. All artwork and designs are property of Sign Emporium and may not be

phone: 586.576.7901
fax:666.881.8182

11035 E 9 Mile Rd
EMPOR'UM Warren, Mi 48089

email: signsbykal@gmail.com

authorization to proceed with

used withaut writien of Sign E

Apgroval:

Mounting Detail

Before

Sign Descripton

The Good Egg

ﬁ‘“ﬂ 3.7-23

Site Address: 51§ Washington St
Oxlord. M1 18371

Contact Infa:

Landlord Infa:

Photo of Suite:

[Meas. of Suite:

Site Plan:

LEps Artwork:

Check Sign Ordinance:

Wall Color S\Y#:

Landlord Approval:

Permits Needed:

ACCEPTANCE OF ARTWORK The drawing above is an artistic representation ONLY. Elements may vary based on field measurements. This color proof is intended
for verification of speiling. layout, cotor and composition. (PLEASE HELP AVOID UNNECESSARY COSTS BY CHECKING THIS PROOF CAREFULLY.) Signature constitutes
ificati nd iti [ this as specified. All artwork and designs are property of Sign Emporium and may not be

emal: sgnsy«a’Zgmal com

prone 58G.576.7901
ar BG6.881 8132

11035 € 9 hile Ry
Warren. 111 43089




Mounting Detail

Double-Sided Lit Blade Sign

Weld To
SteelPlate  2) 378" Screws wilh g
% Washers and Nuls
.063 Aluminum Box
Heliarc Welded *.
P
; =
| '_]1 rS-ign Description
N7 1 The Good Egg
|
& Date:
ﬁ e 3.7-23
| R - i
) S Site Address: 51 § Washington St
Service i y Exisling Poles Oxford, MI 4837 |

/"
Panel Contact Info:

=7

Landlord Info:

Photo of Suite:

— (=
e =0 =2 B ) B () B o)

(= ) () () ) () — [

=ErE-E s =S ==

I
a Meas. of Suite:
|
o @ | Site Plan:
__1 A
/
.Eps Artwork:

LED Modules 4 _ _
/./ (2) 3/8" Screws with Check Sign Ordinance:
/' Washers and Nuts
Weld To Wall Color SW#:
Steel Plate
Front View Side View Landlord Approval:

Permits Needed:

ACCEPTANCE OF ARTWORK The drawing above is an artistic representation ONLY. Elements may vary based on field measurements. This color proof is intended phanc' 586.576.7901
for verification of spelling, layout, color and composition. (PLEASE HELP AVOID UNNECESSARY COSTS BY CHECKING THIS PROOF CAREFULLY.) Signature conslitutes SI\ l fax 866.831.8182

authorization to praceed with specifications and conditions of this document as specified. All artwork and designs are property of Sign Emporium and may not be 11035 E 9 Mile Rd
used without expressed written permission of Sign Emporium. EMPORIUM EErieseev .;gogg

Approval: Date: email: signsbykal@gmail.com

1 S Washington St ¢

Hospital




o
RO
Eae=
MCKENNA

June 10, 2024

Planning Commission

Village of Oxford

22 W. Burdick Street, PO Box 94
Oxford, Michigan 48371

Subject: The Good Egg Restaurant — Special Use Sign Review (Application received May 22, 2024)

Location: 51 S. Washington Street — Parcel #04-27-202-035 (Northwest corner of S Washington and
Dennison Streets)

Zoning: C-1 Core
Dear Planning Commissioners:

At the request of the Village, we have reviewed the above referenced special use for a sign application. The
contractor is Sign Emporium, Inc. on behalf of the business owner Familia Properties, LLC. d/b/a The Good Egg

Breakfast Cafe.

EXISTING CONDITIONS AND REQUESTED SIGNAGE

The lot is currently occupied by a two-story multi-tenant commercial building. The applicant is occupying the
ground floor eastern corner unit with frontage on S. Washington Street. Currently, the unit has no signage on the
S. Washington Street frontage. The applicant is proposing to install one projecting 23 square foot (SF) wall sign at
the northeast corner of the = =

building on the S Washington
Street frontage. The sign
would project 50 inches into
the S. Washington Street
right-of-way over the existing
sidewalk. The bottom edge of
the sign would be
approximately 15 feet 6
inches above the sidewalk
grade. The sign would be an
internally illuminated
aluminum box sign with
yellow and white text and
graphics on a black
background. The light would
project through the yellow
and white text and graphics.
The building fagade is
comprised of red/brown face
brick with large scale
windows on the ground
elevation and double sash
windows on the second floor.

HEADQUARTERS
235 East Main Street O 248.596.0920
Suite 105 F 248.596.0930

Northville, Michigan 48167 MCKA.COM Communities for real life.



-

REQUESTED SPECIAL USE FOR A SIGN

The proposed sign does not comply with three standards of the Zoning
Ordinance. Sec. 7.4.8(E)(2)(b) states that projecting wall signs shall have a
maximum surface area of 16 SF; the proposed sign is 23 SF. Sec.
7.4.8(E)(2)(c) states projecting wall signs shall not be mounted above the
first story on a multi-story building; the proposed sign is higher than
permitted. Sec. 7.4.8(E)(2)(e) states projecting signs shall not be internally
illuminated; the proposed sign is internally illuminated.

Proposed Sign

oM LEABE |

Teaciveses |

When a sign permit is denied for lack of compliance with the zoning
ordinance Sec. 7.4.10 allows a business owner to request a proposed sign
be considered by the Planning Commission as a special use. The Planning
Commission shall make a determination as to whether the proposed sign
complies with the seven criteria outlined in Sec. 7.4.10(B) in addition to
other applicable criteria established in Article 9.

The applicant is requesting a special use sign review by the Planning
Commission to allow for the sign to exceed the maximum permitted sign
area by seven (7) SF, for the sign to be placed above the first story of the
two story building and for the sign to be internally illuminated.

EREACEAST

COMING §

FoR Jom covos
SLEASE £

CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL REVIEW COMMENTS

Section 7.4.10(B) gives the general standards for approval of Special Use
Sign Applications. We have reviewed the application in accordance with
those standards and sound planning and design principles. We offer the
following comments for your consideration.

1. The sign shall not endanger the public health, safety, and welfare by obscuring the vision of drivers
on adjacent roads and streets. The sign would not obscure the vision of drivers. The projecting wall
mounted sign would be above the level of traveling vehicles and be adjacent to the building. The sign would
not interfere with the clear vision of drivers stopped at the S Washington and Dennison Streets intersection
looking at southbound traffic. However, as an internally illuminated sign, it has the potential to cause
excessive glare if the light level creates an overly harsh and distracting lamination. We recommend a
photometric sensor with an automatic dimmer be installed to automatically control the sign’s luminance level
based on ambient light levels. The luminance level should not exceed 100 cd/m? or NITs from dusk to

dawn.

2. The sign shall be constructed of materials that are consistent with the materials used for
construction on other lots in the Village within three hundred feet of the proposed location. The sign
is proposed to be an internally illuminated aluminum box sign with text and graphic logos allowing the
transmission of light. Some signs have recently been installed in the downtown area with a similar
construction. The sign creates a clean and modern aesthetic that is attractive. While it does not contribute
to the historic character of the downtown, the building is also modern and modest in its design. The building
is attractive and has pedestrian scale attributes but has limited ornamentation. The proposed sign would
complement the style of the building and be consistent with the material used for other signs on the

building.

vford Plannina C
UXiTord & lc.mm::; |92

June 10, 2024



s

3. No part of the sign shall extend to a height greater than the height of any other structure within
three-hundred feet of the sign location. The sign will be wall mounted and will not be located higher than
any other structure, thus meeting this requirement.

4. The sign shall not be located so as to block the view of other signs on adjacent or nearby sites,
thereby adversely affecting the ability of an existing commercial enterprise to do business in the
Village. The sign would be 15 ft 6 in above grade and projecting from the wall. There are no other buildings
220 feet to the north and 95 feet to the south on the west side of S Washington St. These buildings also do
not currently have any projecting signs. Even if projecting signs are installed in the future, the distance
between signs would be sufficient to not adversely impact any adjacent businesses.

5. The sign shall not be constructed or located so as to be a visual nuisance to nearby residential
uses. Similar to other downtown signs, if any residences exist on the east side of S. Washington St, the
sign may be visible but would not be a visual nuisance provide the dimmer recommendation cited above is
a condition of approval.

6. The sign shall be generally compatible with the overall community character and shall not create a
disruptive visual appearance that will adversely affect property values in the Village. The intent of the
ordinance is to preserve the character and style created by buildings with architectural details that exhibit
historic trends. The proposed sign is attractive and similar signs have been approved in other locations in
the Village. Within the core downtown, in addition to the older historic buildings with extensive architectural
detailing, there are other building facades that have a similar more modern architectural style. They have
similar signs to the proposed sign and they complement the building design.

7. Downtown Development Authority Recommendation. Per the zoning ordinance, the Planning
Commission may seek the advice of the Oxford DDA regarding the proposed sign. We suggest the DDA
provide a recommendation for the Planning Commission’s consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

The proposed sign will not obscure the vision of drivers nor block the view of adjacent signs. The proposed sign
would complement the style of the existing building however, it might not add to the overall historic character the
Village. If the Planning Commission finds that the proposed sign meets the special use sign criteria, we
recommend any approval be contingent upon the installation of a photometric sensor with an automatic dimmer
that automatically controls the sign’s luminance level based on ambient light levels. The luminance level should
not exceed 100 cd/m2 or NITs from dusk to dawn.

Please feel free to contact us with any questions.
Respectfully submitted,
McKENNA

i (g

Mario A. Ortega, AICP
Principal Planner

CC:  Joe Madore, Village Manager

51 S Washington S
Village of Oxforc




- “m"‘,\\

OXFORD DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Oxford DDA

g Lo ity

June 13, 2024

Planning Commission:

I am writing on behalf of the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) to express our
enthusiastic support for the Good Egg's new signage. We are delighted to back this new business
and commend their excellent choice of signage, which we believe will contribute positively to
the vibrancy and aesthetic appeal of our downtown area. The Good Egg's presence and its
thoughtfully designed signage align with our mission to foster a thriving and visually appealing
business environment, and we are very pleased to support this endeavor.

Thank you for your consideration,

7@&/{4/#}
(L >~

Kelly Westbrook
Executive Director Oxford DDA




VILLAGE OF OXFORD

Planning Commission THE VilIAGE
22 West Burdick, P.O. Box 94

Oxford, M1 48371-0094

248-628-2543

REZONING APPLICATION

Applicant must provide 15 copies of the site plan, application, fees, and all relative documents at least
thirty-five (35) days prior to the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning Commission.

An amendment to the Ordinance and Zoning Map may be initiated by any person, firm, or corporation
by filing an application with the Village of Oxford. A public hearing will be required. The request will ~
be reviewed by Village departments, Planning Commission, and Village Council. R

A final decision will be made by Village Council.

DATE 05/21/2024 PROJECT ADDRESS “+e&=8=#ashiniten 0":/-—- 2?. - 728 4&2.0

APPLXCANT INFORMATION

Name
Gravel Development Group, LLC

Address:
52 E Burdick ST, Suite 267

City: State: Zip:
Oxford Mi 48371

Phone: Cell:
248-462-5421

Email:
joe@designhaus.com

PROBERTVOWNERINFORMATION o

Name:

Oakland County Holdings, LLC

Address:
5188 Aintree Rd.

City: State: Zip:
Rochester Mi 48306

Phone: Cell:

Email:

If applicant is not the owner, describe applicant’s interest in the property. (Proof of ownership OR
affidavit is required.) Purchase agreement on file at Village Offices.




PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Description of Proposed Project:

Single-Family, Owner-Occupied Townhomes |
Existing Zoning g R-1 Single Family O C-1Central Business— Core %} .
Classification: RS

O RM Muttiple Family C-1 Central Business — Transitit}iil .

O
0 I-1 Industrial [ C-2 General Business
O P-1 Vehicular Parking

Proposed Zoning of Property: Conditional zoning RM-Multi Family

Property Size
3.86 Acres 168,246.7
Will the applicant be providing a conditional rezoning agreement? O Yes 0O No
ATTACH THE FOLLOWING:

1. Conditional Rezoning Agreement (if applicable).
2. Proof of property ownership or interest in property (purchase agreement, etc.)
3. Fees: $200 Application Fee

$150 Public Hearing Fee

S# R OQ $500__ Planning & Zoning Review Fee
$250 Each additional Review Fee (if needed)

meetings or the site plan may be tabled due to lack of representation.

Failure to provide true and accurate information on this application shall provide sufficient grounds to deny
approval of a site plan application or to revoke any permits granted subsequent to site plan approval.

APPLICANT’S ENDORSEMENT

this site plan application.

g Y/ )
Lo /7 “/"L/“” < 5777 e,
PP Al s ST
Sig/tj;{nwc,‘ﬂ)f Applicant // Date

Signature of Property Owner Date



G1A Tite Sheot & bndendmg

s/23/3024

111
1998

Oxford Townhouses

147 S Washington St
Oxford, MI 48371

DESIGNHAUS
ARCHITECTURE

e ¥ 3z
S8 S oo
we 290
EY @ am
5= 3 35
CEE 1
.. 0% iz
de
29 & z=
zd & 08
£z
INLEX OF DRAYSINES EH
=
H
oy sori Q seEa 0 sansw 2
T G AR AT AR AL Al e €t et SR T 3| Bre= 5| Aven 23
o G fr e o 3 H
(G MDD L MCHRATENS M58 Y &, SORETAE) A WS CF onomo. L3 ke e 3| @ sarmse 5| @ sarono ac
TN s s AN A8 LN s AL Y Ao 0 TS et o fFri 7
pritegrret e s Fiawimty ¢ e £
Gk AT v FRACCT AR cEUTOLS 1 H
NG AN ST O bt (o iy by IllllllIIIIIIl' lIIIlIIIIDIIIl!
TR U TITIT T T T T T ) E TIT T T[T[T|T) T T T T T T
TP o s
Hasea WAL T — v e
e = =
O] e ARSI - -
answesu = =
gl oarmac
o riaest = =
" = =
B ALy Fom wnd Socend Flcor P b —
R i ey = =
e )
[ =wer o

FEATION (AP

Oxford Townhouses

Title Sheet & Index

8

G1.1




PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

AecosED pupeR 1 or AT o paoe o7

AGE 3¢
GRS PAT NG
287 G savtacki s tomoss

§

i
£

T
i

£

g
5
S
i
b
!2 ot
Fa
ES

H

il

[ D‘C SYSTEM
o 8 anRy

Rk NORY
0P L3¢ 1909 YAV 66 FEETWIOE (30 CALL £9% THOWCE.
gL

¥ i haciwar 10
SOUTSIIe T WSt v e el 10 i vt Cr BeCune
AN KCRE \GROLS ARAD AESERVED

THEREF R8I ALL EABEMENTS AND RIGH T OF WAYS GF RECOHO.

Jon—

N\

MECHaeC STRELT
e

Rra li e
-=:——:&\ v !
_-I'!'_\»:SA&-—--] H
Lo i
P i
. :
xw=rEd—

RO X 1)
O o

EXISTING CONDITIONS

WBUAEDN.. SURVEY PROVIDED ' LECEND:
—r— B R e Y e L e e K Surve y“ e Py raana Divaton
H b B Vi .
3 E HEHES o P e ot ros
o - s i ¥ 3 N O MI371 ot
i) - £ iTl = aasanaz sty
ot fcn Povs Pt & wor | o = |2 &gk IMBER; 17-79255 . f——
s = SHGEHHHE L vk
ot e g e =z g Hps - ors s
Sl ] BHESEEIEHH S R
B geswasge (=3 |83 E |F|E|EE Tt £ o
Bev ma me b0 Z, 3 el R 21 E
= E HHERHIHEE
4 g H




2511 Mrcoketiorst Sha Pl ey

i
H
%
i
i
1
i

MECHANIC STREET

{
§

e
2 5aRaN)

o e

LEQAL DESCRATTION FEISTY ZHRINS TENEGULE IF RESUAVIONS GE- G4
PAICELY 042728020 [ Fermittod Puoporad s By o) PR Do
) 1Y, MGG, RATS. OH PAGE 47 OF S Faras, 15k per acre 4.3 unte por accn oy e O e wn = l 2
'COUNTY RECORDR. ALSOLOT 10 OF “ASSESSORS AT 1O, 5" BERIG A SUSDIISION OF faionad Tooed 15 o 25 Fom - 30 . =1
o OF TWLMORNEAST {F SECTIONST. 041 S HORTH ARIGE 10 EAST WLLKGE OF GXFORD. st s riswss b P rg 2 Stlow Sebom 10 Suler - 30 e L]
5 Ol PAGE 31 OF OAKLND #osnaisne povBuklng &5 Roas . 3 Reat - 30 et | E =y m
COUNTY RECORLS, BERAS MORE VARTCULARLY DS DESCHRED A BEGRAAI AT e SOUTIAWEST 57 1ot kot = R Tonrtuunes pioposted - beetoio hd
soutest o reem— ppesspe 7 et 27 Yo v —
ALOHG THE SOUTHUME OF SA0 10, &, ALSO TH s it oy ]
ACBERTLNGOLIS ADORYON 10 1 VLLAGE OF OKFGRO' 104 FORIT: IHEACE HORTH 13177 R P b A ehouan. =15
WEST 42125 FEET 10 A POINY: [HENCE S0UTH £12017 WEST 190,34 FEET 10 A FOT O THE E Q
HORTHEASY LIE OF 540 LOT 18: HEHCE HoRTH 307725 WSt 1 2 FEET AN THE LORTHEAST Fiont o Sute: 30 Frond o Side 65 =
M€ OF SNOEOT 12 T0 THE NORTIEAST PRRGINS SUNBSART ikdo o i 17 Fows 0 5de: 5697 ey I
53266 FEET ALOUG THE HORTHWES LIHE OF SAD LOT 1870 me vmnm(sw 530 to Sida: 18 =
LOT 18: THENCE SOUTH 021 425" EAST 12,20 FEET ALOHG THE WEST LRE OF SARD "ASSESSORTS FLAT [ Requead Troted z
HO. & 10 THE TONT OF Thik BEGH 8. CONTARANG, 147,958 ICUNRE FEET 5 72505 A T58,206.5F heed 1%
{GROSS SREX, RESERVED THEREFRUA ALL EASEMENTS AHD SIGHT OF WAS OF RECORD. Famdy. 1.5 Spicis pae deweling ik M 356 Acros. L 14
et et [ 2 ot e bovzomt + | ¥ pragaspoen on £ ] <
. 02 Vactor spacon por e vpacn Tobtnt o asiaam Lot o o 2.4 5F
o 2 oszrareon = hut | {21 s
Sedioom Tommtwiwa | 3 10 antvn 32 rpucon Se T Z2
A PAIATE EASEMENT , ACRUSS A10 THRU A 1.5 % 16 wits= 24 1paces. ne = 9O
STRI OF LAND 36 FEET Ill’(m‘&mlmmmuon(somzutxm?mlom:ay acert 2718 ude= 22 epaces we 799
THE NORTHEAST 13 FEET 27.2 Spaces Hequred =Y 2 an
2GR ALBERT FACOLS ADOTION 10 107 VILAGE 0 DRF OB A SO et of B 07 32 % o3
vnemmysviofssrmwz TONH § NORTH, RAHGE 10 EAST. MLAGE OF OXFORD, UANLAHD [V - € 3 «x
TY. MICHIG AN A5 HECORDED b1 UBER 2 OF PLATY, OH FAGE 47 OF DAKLAI) COUNTY parking cpuce procked pre [T Sy O =X
uscoms EIG MORE PARIIGUL Y DESCRBLD A5 COMMEIICHIG AT T SOUIIAEST GO o it 23 = zx
TS, Ori PAGE 31 O QALAND 436 omke= 64 epoces z3 8 92
m vvm.ws vmcenmmuwmv 647,58 FEET ALGHG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAD o &z T o
AT HO, 1 TO THE SOUTHEAST CONMER OF SAD "ATSESSCRS PLAT NO, &, ALSQ THE \ N 2T I dw
SOVEIED COEROF SAD A BEHT YISO MDPIEM 10 1 LA OF GHr O Toepce «% ~. P 22 7 g9
HORTH 69°1.431° EAST 220,67 FEET ALOWG THE SOUTH LIHE OF SAR0 *ALBERT LIICOUHS AR N \§ 2 3z S e
THE VLLAGE O ORTOND: 10 APCRIT, ENVE 1ORTH 51717 WEST SO0 FEET To Tt e 0 IS Total Paiany Spacen ™ ) v 32 % 30
BEGHURG, HEIICE PROCEEDS G HOTH 1717 WEST Sz FELT o Pom e vorn - = N Py =5 % xe
17 .98 FELT JO A PORIT OH HHE SOUTHATST LIE OF K24 18GHNAY 66 FEET WOE 6 Spaces L= o 2% T 2%
50 CALLEDY, HENCE SUTH 3971 EAGY S0 FEET R OUG THE SOUNEST B OF Sal M A A
HGHAAY 10 A PORT; THENCE Y
COMTARIN a7t SOUARE FECT OR 0,150 OF A ALRE (R0 4PN, RS e ALL
EASEMEHTS AND RKIHT OF WAYS OF RECORD, \ 2
¥ - L
g
N, - = =
3 - = =
w7 A = =
e, s wr e = =
2N @ 3 N ==
ST BN~ o s7-m-022 = =
28 (e 3t = =
oa ) i7i-o08 = =
- e = =
it
e o5 a0 = =
R Crr I ]
D4a7-278- 803 Ko

\,
8,
e N
rastac A3 g
N 5 orverd »

T,
e AN 2

I - = A

AR I4E | #47.3F ()

:

T
ety

o)
Y
oA-17k26-008

o
112 Mastahe
ity

>
priviite

\
w5
.

e
1o uatark
o4 =27-414-008

ey

i
94 matonke O
‘ba-a7-428-010

R slmionta O
Tepoem-on

Arohilsel

&l Sils Plan

Sairo

B

@

Architectural Site Plan

Oxford Townhouses

Oxtord, bl 48371

&

AS1.1




8651
]

JHNLOILIHOUY

SNVHNDISIT

MO SAYHNDIBIABALN|
WOJ EAVYHNDIEZA MM

PSASTCSIAREII TENHOS ANTL
szear Iw ‘TIHH NWaEnv

00€ F1INE "QW HMAGNY DOLC

1ie]g 100} pUO3ag pue 1sIl4

Leewy it PrOUO
15 BTN € 1)

SASROYURDY PIOJXG

A1

R
o]
.Qw..ma m.ﬂ_. — —
-h'm -1 -z - |.ll| 5 W W
H g S s e L
@ = ooy
L )
. ol .
D eg—r3 4]
e/ — ,
a
&
&
¥z
.-..Wvl Mu |~
Tk SEE m i
© K A
. £ z W
b R :
& 3
» o i B
o ;

aprm g en iy scoe/eese

@ Fieal Flon:




9681
m

FHNLOILHOYY

SNVHNDISIO

"
PERSESI AT TEVI IO RYLIL
BICUP IN ‘31TIH NuRENY

00¢ 3LINS "QY KUAANY 0DCT

suojiexsyd buippng

L2E0Y Iy PORO
WuoBuieesm 8 It

SASOLUMO} PIOJNG

w8

A1

i}

o
=
5

e LY vest/u/s




o

MCKENNA

June 11, 2024

Mr. Joseph Madore
Village Manager
Village of Oxford

22 W. Burdick Street
Oxford, Ml 48317

Subject: Request for Amendment to the Official Zoning Map

Location: 147 S. Washington St. — Parcel ID# 04-27-278-020 (Located on the east side of Mechanic
Street, south of Lincoln Street)

Zoning: R-1, Single Family Residential Requested Zoning: Conditional RM, Multiple Family

Dear Mr. Madore:

At the Village's request, we have reviewed the above referenced application for rezoning of property. The
applicant and property owner have requested the rezoning of a lot at the location described above. We have
reviewed the proposed rezoning for consistency with the Village Master Plan, the relevant sub-area
redevelopment plans and sound planning and zoning principals. We offer the following comments for your
consideration. .

DESCRIPTION OF SITE
AND SURROUNDING AREA
The aerial photo on the right i
depicts the boundary of the [
lot requesting to be rezoned.
|
|
k

The lot is approximately 3.86
acres in area and is an
unimproved vacant site. It is
relatively level in topography
comprised predominately of a
grass field with trees along
the southern property line.
The lot has approximately 32
feet of frontage on Mechanic
Street. It also has access to
S Washington St via a
vehicle easement over parcel
#04-27-278-021. The site is
currently zoned R-1, Single
Family Residential and the
applicant is requesting the
site be rezoned to
Conditional RM, Multiple
Family Residential.

HEADQUARTERS
235 East Main Street O 248.596.0920
Suite 105 F 248.596.0930

Northville, Michigan 48167 MCKA.COM Communities for real life.



The existing land use, zoning and future land use designations for the site and surrounding lots are summarized
in the following table.

Table 1: Zoning and Existing and Future Land Use of Site and Area

Existing Land Use Current Zoning ths‘:;:talgg Use
Site Vacant/Unimproved R-1 Multiple Family Residential
North Single Family Residential R-1 Single Family Residential
South | Single Family Residential Oxford Township | Oxford Township
East Commercial/Retail C-2 Commercial
West | ganiel Axford Elementary R-1 Public/Semi-Public

STANDARD VERSUS CONDITIONAL REZONING

The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, PA 110 of 2006, MCL 125.3101 et seq. is the State statute that specifies the
various policies and procedures the Village shall follow regarding the use and zoning of land. This includes the
procedures that must be followed regarding any change to the zoning classification of a lot. Sec. 405 of PA 110 of
2006 (MCL 125.3405) states that an owner of land may voluntarily offer in writing, and the local unit of
government may approve, certain use and development of land as a condition to a rezoning of the land or an
amendment to a zoning map.

With a standard rezoning, the Village must consider all of the permitted and special land uses that could be
developed on the site in the proposed district. They must determine if all possible future development will be
compatible with adjacent uses. With a conditional rezoning, the applicant voluntarily proposes to restrict the
proposed list of uses to a specific few along with a set of conditions on the site's development in order to achieve
compatibility with adjacent uses. Rather than being given the right to develop a site for any of the permitted or
special land use within a proposed new zoning district, the applicant may only use a site for the use or uses they
list within a conditional rezoning.

As part of the process, a legally binding conditional rezoning agreement will be signed by the property owner and
the Village and will be recorded at the County. The agreement specifies how the site will be developed and
establishes a time period during which the conditions apply to the land. If the site is not developed with the
specified time period, the conditions of the rezoning are not complied with, or it is no longer being utilized for the
proposed conditional use, then the site must revert to the previous zoning district.

PROPOSED CONDITIONAL REZONING

The applicant is requesting to rezone the site to Conditional RM Multiple Family Residential. The applicant is
proposing to specifically develop the site for owner-occupied townhouses. Rather than be developed at the
permitted by right 15 dwelling units per acre (DUs/acre) in the RM district, the applicant would restrict the density
to 8.3 DUs/acre. The site would have four 4-unit townhome buildings and two 8-unit townhome buildings for a
total of 32 townhouses. The buildings would be 23 ft. in height. Each 4-unit building would have two 2-bedroom
units and two 3-bedroom units. The submitted conceptual site plan, architectural floor plans and elevations would
be included as a part of the conditional rezoning agreement.

REVIEW CRITERIA FOR REZONING
We have reviewed the proposed application relative to Section 9.8.5 of the zoning ordinance which provides
standards for rezonings and offer the following comments for your consideration:

onditional RM Rezoning Review #1 2

mning Commission

|
S
BEED



S

A. Consistency with the goals, policies, and objectives of the Master Plan. The Future Land Use Map in
the 2011 Village Master Plan designates the lot's future land use classification as Multiple Family Residential.
The corresponding zoning district for the Multiple Family Residential future land use classification is the RM
zoning district. The Master Plan states that the Village has used this map designation sparingly and has used

this designation in > v \
the areas WhiCh are FUfoe Land Use Map “ \‘ \‘ Future Land Use
most appropriate , e a \ 1.4 Single Family Residential
. . e
while not allowmg s (Y \‘ s ’2\’\ ingle Family Residentia
fora I q“o@ \‘ \\ \?9" ¥ \\ Multiple Family Residential
-
disproportionate ¥ \\ "\‘\?“ \ . Central Business District
proliferation. . % 3 A Downtown Parking
\\"o' \\ \,’ . "
ommercia
. : S |
2016, the Vilage N 73" N Office/ Residential
adopted the South WO P A0 ————
Washington W o e ight Industria
Redevelopment o’ X Recreation
Plan which includes e S Public/ Semi Public
this site in an area ,‘/ X
designated the e L D LD D LT DD e

Washington Triangle. The Redevelopment Plan envisioned the combined development of the vacant parcel
and the redevelopment of the commercially zoned lots along S. Washington Street. The plan emphasized
pedestrian and vehicle connections through the site, connecting to adjacent roads in as many places
including S Washington St, Mechanic St and Minnetonka Dr. It encourages unique single-family style units,
such as bungalow courts, to use the triangular lot efficiently.

The Redevelopment Plan’s future land use classification for the lot remains Multiple Family Residential. This
reflects the need to consider a density greater than the six (6) DUs/acre permitted in a Single Family
Residential district given the unique configuration of the site and the lack of road frontage. Unique single
family housing types, such as bungalow courts, are developed at a density of 10 to 12 DUs/acre. The
applicant is proposing a conditional rezoning and will develop the site at 8.3 DUs/Acre which is significantly
less than the permitted multiple family residential density of 15 DUs/Acre.

Townhomes are often considered a type of single family configuration because there is only one party wall
separating each unit. Townhomes also are a simple configuration to allow for individual ownership rather than
rental. Given that the site is planned for Multiple Family Residential, and the applicant is proposing a single
family housing style at a density less than what would be permitted under standard RM regulations, the
rezoning of the lot RM would be consistent with the Village Master Plan and South Washington
Redevelopment Plan.

B. Compatibility of the site’s physical, geological, hydrological, and other environmental features with
the uses permitted in the proposed district. The site is an undeveloped urban lot with trees and turf grass
as the only natural features present. The site is flat with no topographic changes and has no creeks, streams
or other hydrological features. The proposed townhome use will require site plan review and approval that will
include determining compliance with all zoning ordinance and Village engineering standards. Given the lack
of environmental features, the fully developed urban nature of all adjacent property and knowing how the site
will be developed, the proposed conditional rezoning will be compatible with the site’s physical features.

gton St - Conditional RV Rezoning Review #1 3
¢ Planning Commission

ge of O
June 11, 2024



147

S Washington St

Evidence that the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the
property with one or more of the uses permitted in the current district. The applicant has not presented
any evidence regarding the return on investment on the property. The R-1 district has a very limited number
of uses for which the site can be redeveloped. Alternative uses in the R-1 would include a group home, child
care center or bed and breakfast. However, a return on investment is not a factor typically considered for a
rezoning. The vagaries of the free market, the highs and lows of real estate costs and the ability of an
individual to operate a successful development are all much more influential in determining whether a return
on an investment is achieved in comparison to the permitted uses for a site. However, the site’s unique
configuration and lack of road frontage significantly impact the ability of the site to be developed for detached
single family structures with a sufficient market value to achieve any kind of positive return on development.

Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding uses.
As a conditional RM rezoning, the proposed townhome use is the only type of use that needs to be
considered when evaluating compatibility. The property to the east has been developed for commercial uses
including a car wash and a proposed coffee stand. The property to the north and south is occupied by single
family homes. The existing residences vary in size from 800 to 1,500 SF in floor area and include both ranch
and two-story style homes. The proposed townhomes will be approximately 1,200 to 1,400 SF in floor area
and contain two to three bedrooms per home. The size and scale of the structures will be similar to the
adjacent residences offering similar living areas.

Capacity of the Village’s utilities and services is sufficient to accommodate the permitted uses in the
proposed district. The site will have access to utility mains in the adjacent rights-of-way. We will defer to the
Village DPW, Fire, Police, and Engineer regarding the capacity of the utilities and the service demands for the
attached single family townhomes.

The capacity of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic. As noted
above, the conditional rezoning is proposing a residential density of 8.3 DUs/Acre which is slightly higher than
the permitted 6.0 DUs/Acre of the R-1 single family district. The traffic volume generated by the townhomes
will not be a significant increase from a standard detached single family home. We note that given the
proposed size of the garages and the width of the proposed streets, the townhomes would not have the
opportunity to have the three to four vehicles that could be stored on a single family lot. The resulting traffic
volume generated per unit will potentially be less than a detached single family lot.

The vast majority of residences in the Village have more than one access due to the platted street
configuration and urban character of the Village. While this is preferred from a convenience and safety
standpoint, the lot width on Mechanic street would severely restrict the configuration of a road intersection.
The site will be designed to have access only to S Washington Street. This configuration will result in the
development having no direct impact on the adjacent local streets. S. Washington Street is the highest
capacity street in the Village and is designated and designed to accommodate a high traffic volume. The
traffic volume generated by the townhomes will not significantly impact the S Washington St capacity.

Any construction on the site would be able to meet the dimensional regulations of the requested
zoning district. The conceptual site plan includes a comparison of the dimensional requirements for a
standard RM to the dimensions of the townhome development. The proposed configuration will comply with
and exceed the minimum dimensional requirements of the zoning ordinance. As proposed, the site will be
developed to exceed the dimensional regulations of a standard RM use.

Conditional RM Rezoning Review #1

iC sion

| Planning Comm




Y
f
]

H. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate than
another zoning district. Given that all other Village zoning districts are higher intensity in nature, to ensure
compatibility, the requested zoning district is more appropriate than a change to any other zoning district.

I.  The issue could not be resolved by revising the list of permitted uses in the current zoning district.
The permitted uses in the R-1 district are currently limited to detached single family residences and other
associated uses typically found or required to be allowed in a single family neighborhood. The list of uses in
the R-1 district could be revised to allow for a greater variety of single family housing types, including attached
single family residences, triplexes and fourplexs which are found in other communities similar to the size,
scale and urban character of the Village. However, this would require the Village to consider allowing these
housing types throughout all neighborhoods in the Village. Given the unique characteristics of this particular
lot, the conditional RM rezoning would be the most effective way to allow a compatible development.

J. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. The site
is located adjacent to property currently zoned C-2 General Business District. A conditional rezoning of the lot
would not create an incompatible zone in the neighborhood. The Village currently has RM zoned property
located between commercial and single family residential zoned property following a policy of transitional
zoning district pattern. The conditional rezoning would be consistent with the zoning layout policy of the
Village.

RECOMMENDATION
Based on the following findings, we advise the Planning Commission to recommend approval to Village Council of
the proposed conditional rezoning of 174 S. Washington St. from R-1, Single Family Residential to Conditional
RM, Multiple Family Residential zoning district with the condition that a Conditional Rezoning Agreement be
drafted for the Village Council’'s consideration prior to their review.

1) Consistency with the Village of Oxford Future Land Use Plan.

2) Consistency with the 2016 South Washington Redevelopment Plan.

3) Comepatibility of the site's physical features with the proposed townhome use.

4) Compatibility of the proposed townhomes with the adjacent existing and planned uses.

5) Capacity of utility infrastructure and services to accommodate the proposed townhomes.

6) Capacity of S. Washington St to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic.

7) The conditional rezoning would be consistent with the transitional zoning pattern of the Village.

We look forward to reviewing these findings and recommendation with you. Please feel free to contact us with
any questions.

Respectfully submitted,
McKENNA

i (g

Mario A. Ortega, AICP
Principal Planner

w

147 § Washington St~ Conditional RVl Rezoning Review #1
ge of Oxford Planning Commission

June 11, 2024




COMMERCIAL PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS COMMERCIAL PURCHASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 17" day of April 2024, ("Effective Date") by
and between OAKLAND COUNTY HOLDINGS LLC (“Seller”), whose address is 5188 Aintree Road, Rochester, M 48306
and Gravel Development Group, LLC, (“Purchaser”), whose address is 701 N Main St., Rochester, Ml 48307, in the

manner following:

1. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION. Purchaser offers and agrees to purchase the real property located in the X Village of
Oxford, County of Oakland, Michigan, commonly known as 155 § Washington St., Oxford, Ml 48371 , tax parcel
identification number(s) 04-27-278-020 and further described T5N, R10E, SEC 27 ALBERT LINCOLN'S ADD
PART OF LOTS 3, 4,5 & 6 BLK 2, ALSO PART OF BLK 3, ALSO OF ‘ASSESSOR’S PLAT NO. 8’ LOT 18 ALL
202 COMMERCIAL-VACANT, together with Seller's interest in all easements, appurtenances, land division rights,
timber, air, oil, gas and mineral, subsurface, riparian, and all other rights and interests pertaining to such property,
and together with all buildings, structures and other physical improvements situated on such property {collectively, the

“Real Property™).

2. PURCHASE PRICE. The purchase price ("Purchase Price”) for the Property shall be Three Hundred Thousand
Forty-Nine ($349,000) Dollars.

3. PAYMENT OF PURCHASE PRICE. The Purchase Price shall be paid as indicated by an “X” placed in the
appropriate box below, with initials of Seller and Purchaser acknowiedging Purchaser's method of payment, while the

other unmarked terms of purchase shall not apply.

4, X CASH. At time of closing.

5. EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT. Within three (3) calendar days following the Effective Date of this Agreement,
Purchaser shall deposit with Coldwell Banker Commercial Premier, {the "Title Company" or “Escrow Agent”),
Purchaser's eamest money deposit in the amount of Fifteen Thousand ($15,000.00) Doltars (the “Deposit’). I
Purchaser fails to deliver the Deposit timely, Purchaser shall be in default and Seller may terminate this
Agreement upon notice to Purchaser. The Deposit shall be refunded to Purchaser in the event this Agreement is
properly terminated by Purchaser under the terms and conditions provided for herein; retained by Seller; or

applied to the Purchase Price at Closing.

6. DUE DILIGENCE CONTINGENCY. Purchaser shall have Ninety (90) days after receipt of fully accepted copy of
this Agreement executed by Seller ("Inspection Period") to inspect and pursue the following items (place an "X" next

{0 all that apply):

CBC Premier Form — Commercial Purchase Agresment
Revised 8/22/23

TN
12:06p.m. 04-22-2024/I4VL k&




X Purchaser's physical inspection of all aspects of the Property

X Purchaser's satisfaction with the results of an environmental site assessment.

X Purchaser making soil tests, barings and any other engineer and architectural tests Purchaser desires.
X Purchaser conducting any other due ditigence desired by Purchaser.

7. Al due diligence shall be performed by Purchaser at Purchaser's sole expense. Prior to expiration of the Inspection
Period, if Purchaser notifies Seller that, in Purchaser's sole discretion, the Property is unsuitable for Purchaser's
intended purposes, then Seller and the Escrow Agent shall return the Deposit to Purchaser , and neither party shall
have any further rights or obligations under this Agreement, except for any obligations which, by the terms of this
Agreement are intended to survive termination. In the event Purchaser does not provide Seller with written notice of
termination prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period, then the Deposit shall be non-refundable (uniess Seller
defaults), Purchaser shall be deemed to be satisfied with its inspections of the Property and this contingency shall be
deemed fulfilled. Seller, at no expense to Seller, shall caoperate with Purchaser in providing reasonable access to
the Property for Purchaser to perform its due diligence, and in obtaining all approvals desired or required from any
federal, state or local government (“Governmental Approvals”), provided that no Govemmental Approvals shall be
binding upon Seller or the Property if Purchaser fails to close. Said Governmental Approvals shall be obtained during
the Inspection Period unless the parties hereafter agree in writing that additional time is required to obtain them.
Purchaser shall repair any damage to the Property caused by Purchaser or its agents, and Purchaser shall defend
and indemnify and hold Seller harmless against any liability, loss, damage, cost or expense arising from any of
Purchaser's due diligence activities; and these obligations of Purchaser shall survive termination of this Agreement.
Within 3 business days (via electronic transmission to Purchaser's email address) after execution of this Agreement,
Seller will provide Purchaser with copies of all title policies, surveys, leases, environmental reports, studies, site
plans, certificates of occupancy and other documentation in the possession or control of Seller, which is material to

Purchaser's decision whether to purchase the Property.

Should the Purchaser be in the process of inspecting the above requirements without a satisfactory conclusion at the
end of the 90-day period, he shall have the opportunity to request a 30 day extension by submitting an additional
deposit of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) along with the 30 day extension request. At the expiration of the original
90 day due diligence period, or at the time the 30 day extension is requested and granted, the original deposit of
Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000) becomes non-refundable. In the same way, the second deposit becomes non
refundable on the 315 day of the extension. This method will apply to any additional and subsequent extension
requests and grants. Purchaser shall only be entitled to a refund of all such deposits if Seller fails or refuses to
execute the necessary closing documents in conformity with the terms of this Agreement or cannot deliver fee simple
marketable title to the Property subject only to the Permitted Exceptions.

8. 4.1 Default. In the event of default by Purchaser under this Agreement, Seller's sole remedy at taw or equity shall be
to declare forfeiture and obtain the entire Deposit as liquidated damages, in full termination of this Agreement. In the
event of a default by Seller, Purchaser may demand and be entitled to an immediate refund of the entire deposit

@ 12:06p.m. 04-22-2024 (jwl
Oabdaz3,



9. TITLE INSURANCE.

a. Title Insurance: Owner Policy of Title Insurance to be fumished hereunder, to be paid for by Seller.

Within 10 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, Seller shall order a commitment for an ALTA
Owner's Policy of Title Insurance, without Standard Exceptions (the “ Titte Commitment”), from the
Title Company, and shall provide a copy of the same to Purchaser upon receipt. Purchaser in its sole
and absolute discretion shall determine whether all matters of title and survey are satisfactory. The Title
Commilment shall be accompanied by copies of all recorded exceptions to title referred to therein. At
Closing, the Titie Company shall deliver to Purchaser a satisfactorily "marked up" Title Commitment.
The Title Insurance Policy to be issued pursuant to the marked up Title Commitment shall contain such
endorsements as Purchaser may reasonably require, provided, however Purchaser shall be responsible

for the cost of such endorsements.

b. Objections to Title and Survey. If Purchaser objects to any matters of title or survey and Purchaser so

notifies Seller in writing of such objection(s) ("Objection Notice") before expiration of the Inspection
Period, then Seller shall have 30 days from the date Seller receives the Objection Notice to either: (i)
remedy the title and survey defects described in Purchaser's Objection Notice and abtain and deliver to
Purchaser a revised Title Commitment and/or survey which reflects that all such defects have been
remedied; or (i) notify Purchaser and Escrow Agent that Seller is unable or unwilling to remedy the
defects, in which event Purchaser shall, at its option, within five (5) business days after receipt of such
notice from Seller, either terminate this Agreement and receive a full refund of the Deposit (subject to
those obligations which by their terms survive termination) or waive Purchaser’s title and survey
objections, and proceed to Closing, subject to satisfaction or waiver of Purchaser's other pre-Closing
contingencies. If Purchaser proceeds to Closing, all exceptions set forth in the Title Commitment, and
all objectionable matters set forth in the Survey, shalt be deemed "Permitted Exceptions.”

10. ENVIRONMENTAL.

a. Environmental. To the best of Seller's knowledge, there are no areas of the Property where hazardous

g COoLOWE

h:l COMM

substances or hazardous wastes, as such terms are defined by applicable Federal, State and local
statutes and regulations, are present in quantities in violation of applicable law. No claim has been
made against Seller with regard to hazardous substances or wastes with respect to the Property.

it L‘: PREMIER ‘
"t ! | 'i/
CBC Premier Form — Commercial Purchase Agreement
Revised 8/22/23 12:06p.m. 04-22-2024 /
bgi6eeh

/

A\
~\
o



b. Due Diligence. Purchaser shall have the right at Purchaser's expense to conduct a Phase | environmental
site assessment during the Inspection Period. If any Phase Il subsurface investigation is required or
recommended, Purchaser and Seller shall attempt to agree upon the nature and extent of any Phase 11 activities
and which party shall bear the cost. If Purchaser and Seller are unable to agree within 10 days, then either party
may, upon notice to the other, terminate the Agreement, in which event the Deposit shall be refunded to
Purchaser and neither party shall have any further liability thereunder (except for those obligations which, by
their terms, survive termination). Purchaser agrees to repair and restore any damage to the Property caused by
Purchaser's investigations or testing, at Purchaser’s sole expense. Purchaser shall defend, indemnify and hold
Seller harmless from ali costs, expenses and liabilities arising out of Purchaser’s inspection of the Property,
including that of Purchaser’s employees, agents, consultants, or contractors performing said inspection.

. CLOSING AND CLOSING ADJUSTMENTS. Closing shall take place at the offices of the Title Company or another

mutually acceptable location at the earlier of: (i) 10 days following the expiration of the Inspection Period ; or (ii) upon

Purchaser's written nofification to Seller that all of the Purchaser's conditions prtiﬁient and contingencies have b Tess both
satisfied or waived; provnded however, in no event shall Closing occur later than Apx 1872024 (such date for Clopagties agree

the “Closing” or “Clasing Date"). m C)IJ\. to an .
extension.

12:06p.m. 04-22-2024
conveying good and marketable fee simple title to the

At Closing, Seller shall deliver to Purchaser a WarrggfgDe
Property, subject to the Permitted Exceptions, and the lien of real estate taxes not yet due and payable, along with
Seller's right to make any land divisions of the Property permitted to Seller, under the Michigan Land Division Act,
MCL 560.101 et seq. Should any financial liens or encumbrances of a definite or ascertainable amount (such as a
mortgage) be recorded against the Property, Seller shall pay and/or satisfy any such encumbrance prior ta or
simultaneously with the Closing. In addition, at Closing, Seller shall pay the base owner's title insurance policy
premium, all state or county real estate transfer taxes, all outstanding water and sewer bills, and any other
outstanding obligations which, if unpaid, may become a lien against the Property. The parties shall share equally all
Title Company fees and expenses. Current real estate taxes (i.e. the most recent summer and winter tax bills issued)
shall be prorated as of the date of the Closing on a “due date” basis as if paid in advance, with Seller receiving a
credit for any prepaid taxes. All assessments, including, but not limited to any special assessments which have
become a lien upon the land shall be paid in full by Seller. Each party shalt pay their own attorney fees. At Closing,
the Title Company may establish a water escrow, pending receipt of a final paid water bill for water and sewer

charges incurred through Closing.

. SELLER’S WARRANTIES, REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS. Seller warrants, represents and covenants

to Purchaser, as follows:

. Authority. Seller: (i) if an entity, is a lawfully constituted entity, duly organized, validly existing, and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Michigan or another state; (i) has the authority and power to enter into
this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated herein; and (iif) upon execution hereof wilt be

@ 12:06p.m. 04-22-2024 M e ‘\,}\ -
7992067 ( \J
p



legally obligated to Purchaser in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. Before Closing,
Seller shall provide the Title Company and Purchaser with satisfactory written evidence that all necessary and
appropriate action has been taken by Seller authorizing and approving the execution, delivery and performance
by Seller of this Agreement and all closing documents, and the performance by Seller of all other acts necessary
or appropriate for the consummation of the purchase and sale of the Property as contemplated herein.

14. Title. Seller owns the Property in fee simple and has marketable and good title to the Property. Seller will not
further encumber title to the Property before Closing without Purchaser’s prior written consent, which consent

shall not be unreasonably withheld.

15. Conflicts. The execution and entry into this Agreement by Seller, the execution and defivery of the documents
and instruments to be executed and delivered by Seller on the Closing Date, and the performance by Seller of
Seler's duties and obligations under this Agreement and of all other acts necessary and appropriate for the full
consummation of the purchase and sale of the Property as contemplated herein, will not violate any contract,
agreement or other instrument to which Seller is a party, or any judicial order of judgment of any nature by which

Seller or the Property is bound.

16. Litigation. There is no action, suit or proceeding pending or, to the best of Seller's knowiedge, threatened by or
against or affecting Sefler or the Property which does or will involve or affect the Propenty or title thereto. Seller
will, promptly upon receiving any such notice or leaming of any such contemplated or threatened action, give

Purchaser written notice thereof.

17. No Violations. To the best of Seller's knowledge, Seller has not received notice of any existing violations of state
or federal laws, municipal, or county ordinances, or other legal requirements with respect to the Property. In the
event Seller receives notice of any such violation affecting the Property prior to the Closing, Seller shall promptly

notify Purchaser thereof.

18. Foreign Ownership. Seller is not a “foreign person” as that term is defined in the U. S. Intemal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, and the reguations promulgated pursuant thereto, and Purchaser has no obligation under
Section 1445 of the U. S. internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, to withhold and pay over to the U. S.
internal Revenue Service any part of the “amount realized” by Seller in the transaction contemplaled hereby (as
such term is defined in the regulations issued under said Section 1445). Seller shall fumish Purchaser with a

non-foreign person affidavit at Closing.

CBGC Premier Farm — Commercial Purchase Agreement
Revised 8/22/23

12:06p.m. 04-22-202M ( ) M\j\ —
J
\//




19. Construction Liens. On the Closing Date, Seller will not be indebted to any contractor, laborer, materialmen,
architect, or engineer for work, labor or services performed or rendered, or for materials supplied or furnished, in
connection with the Property for which any person could claim a lien against the Property and shall execute a
standard title company affidavit to this effect at Closing.

20. PURCHASER'S WARRANTIES, REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS.

a. Authority. Purchaser: (i) if an entity, is a lawfully constituted entity, duly organized, validly existing, and
in good standing under the laws of the State of Michigan or another state; (i) has the authority and
power to enter into this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated herein; and (i)
upon execution hereof will be legally obligated to Sefler in accordance with the terms and provisions of
this Agreement. Before Closing, Purchaser shall provide the Title Company and Seller with satisfactory
written evidence that afl necessary and appropriate action has been taken by Purchaser authorizing and
approving the execution, delivery and performance by Purchaser of this Agreement, and afl closing
documents and the performance by Purchaser of all other acts necessary or as appropriate for the

consummation of the purchase and sale of the Property as contemplated herein.

b. Conflicts. The execution and entry into this Agreement by Purchaser, the execution and delivery of the
documents and instruments to be executed and delivered by Purchaser on the Closing Date, and the
performance by Purchaser of Purchaser’s duties and obligations under this Agreement and of all other
acts necessary and appropriate for the full consummation of the purchase and sale of the Property as
contemplated herein, will not violate any contract, agreement or other instrument to which Purchaser is

a party, or any judicial order or judgment of any nature by which Purchaser is bound.

21. DAMAGE TO PROPERTY. If between the Effective Date of this Agreement and the Closing Date, all or any part of
the Property is damaged by fire or natural elements or other causes beyond the Seller's control, which Seller does
not repair or agree to repair prior to the Closing Date, or any part of the Property is taken pursuant to any power of
eminent domain, Seller shall immediately notify Purchaser of such occurrence, and Purchaser may terminate this
Agreement with written notice to Seller within 15 days after the date Purchaser leams of such damage or taking, and
receive a refund of the Deposit without further liability, except for those obligations of Purchaser which are intended to
survive termination. If Purchaser does not elect to terminate this Agreement, there shall be no reduction of the
purchase price and Seller shall assign to Purchaser whatever rights Seller may have with respect to any insurance

proceeds or eminent domain award at Closing.

”’7 _
@ 12:06p.m. 04-22-2024 / ( \\})\f
166053¢ s



22. ASIS. Neither Seller nor any broker, nor any of their officers, directors, managers, members, employees or agents
have made any representation, warranty or disclosure with respect to the Property, upon which Purchaser may rely,
except as may be set forth in writing in this Agreement. By Closing, Purchaser agrees to accept the Property in "As
Is" condition to the fullest extent permitted by law.

23. SELLER'S CLOSING OBLIGATIONS. At Closing, Seller shall execute and deliver the Warranty Deed, closing
statement, standard title company owner's affidavit and all other usual and customary Title Company and other

closing documents necessary or appropriate to consummate the sale.

24. PURCHASER’S CLOSING OBLIGATIONS. At closing, Purchaser shall pay to Seller the Purchase Price in the
manner specified in Section 3 above, subject to agreed pro rations and adjustments, and execute and deliver a
closing statement and all other usual and customary Title Company and other closing documents necessary or

appropriate to consummate the sale.

25. SECTION 1031 TAX-DEFERRED EXCHANGES. Upon either party's request, the other party shall cooperate and
reasonably assist the requesting party in structuring the purchase and sale contemplated by this Agreement as part
of a tax deferred, like-kind exchange under Section 1031 of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;
provided, however, that in connection therewith, the non-requesting party shall not be required to: (a) incur any
additional costs or expenses; (b) take legal tile to additional real property (i.e., the requesting parties’ “replacement
property” or “relinquished property”); or (c) agree to delay the Closing. However, should both parties wish to
complete a tax-deferred exchange, the parties will each incur their own additional expenses related to their exchange
and shall spiit any common costs which will benefit both parties by such a division.

26. NOTICES. Unless otherwise stated in this Agreement, a notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be
sufficient if in writing and either delivered personally or sent via Federal Express, UPS or a similar nationally
recognized ovemight delivery service, or by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the parties at their
addresses specified below or by email. Any notices given by personal service shall be below or by e-mail effective
upon delivery. Any notice given by Federal Express or UPS shall be deemed effective one business day after
sending. Any notice given by certified mail, return receipt requested, shall be deemed given three business days

after mailing, and any notice given by email shall be deemed effective upon receipt.

27. ADDITIONAL ACTS. Purchaser and Seller agree to execute and deliver such additional documents and perform
such additional acts as may become necessary or appropriate to effectuate the transfers contemplated by this

Agreement.

CBC Premier Form — Commercial Purchase Agreement M
Revised 8/22/23 12:07p.m. 04-22-2024 C:)J\}\v P
£cc893c



28.

28.

30.

31.

32.

33.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the sale of the
Property. All contemporaneous or prior oral and written negotiations and agreements have been merged into this

Agreement.

MICHIGAN LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Michigan, without regard to its conflict of laws principles.

AMENDMENTS. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by written instrument signed by the Purchaser

and Seller.

EFFECTIVE DATE. For purposes of this Agreement, the phrase “Effective Date” shall be the last date upon which
this Agreement becomes fully executed, and delivered by both parties including any counter proposals or

amendments counter-signed by the opposing party.

BROKER. Purchaser and Seller each acknowledge that (i) Purchaser's real estate agent is Coldwell Banker
Commercial Premier and is acling as the Buyers Agent (i) Seller’s real estate agent is Signature Associates and is
acting as: an agent of the Seller;. Seller agrees to pay the real estate broker(s) involved in this transaction a
combined brokerage fee of $20,940.00(6%), with $10,470.00 paid to Coldwell Banker Commercial Premier and
$10,470.00 paid to Signature Associates at Closing.  The parties acknowledge that other than the parties’ real
estate agents disclosed herein, no other real estate brokers, salespersons, or agents are involved in this transaction
and the parties hereby indemnify and hold each other harmless from any and all such claims for brokerage fees. All
brokers and their agents specifically disclaim responsibility for the condition of the Property and performance of this
Agreement. The parties each hereby, and by closing shall be deemed to, waive and release any and all claims and
causes of action against all named brokers, their officers, directors, managers, members, employees and agents.
The parties each hereby grant all named brokers the right to record a lien against the Property to secure payment of
their commission including, without limitation, the right to record a lien under Michigan’s Commercial Real Estate
Broker Lien Act. All named brokers are third party beneficiaries of this Agreement.

BROKER ENVIRONMENTAL DISCLAIMER. The Purchaser and Seller agree that each broker and real estate
agent has fully disclosed any knowledge that such broker and/or real estate agent has concerning possible toxic or
hazardous material or substances or other adverse environmental conditions on or about the Property and the
Purchaser acknowledges that Purchaser shall be given the opportunity to make a competent environmental
inspection, and the Purchaser and Seller each do hereby release each broker and real estate agent from any liability
concerning toxic and hazardous material or substance or other adverse environmental conditions on or about the

ey
:3/\/ ) 12:07p.m. 04-22-2024 /[ / Z ]' C}{\ }\



Property. The Purchaser and Seller each hereby expressly waive any claim whatsoever against each broker and reat
estate agent before or afier the closing of this transaction arising out of or in connection with any of the foregoing.

34. DEFAULT.

a. Seller's Default.  If the sale and purchase of the Property contemplated by this Agreement is not
consummated on account of Seller's default or failure to perform hereunder, Purchaser shall as its sole
remedy, elect fo either: (i) specifically enforce the terms hereof; or (ii) demand and be entitled to an
immediate refund of the Deposit, in which case this Agreement shall terminate in full, except for any
provisions which by their terms, are intended to survive termination,

b. Purchaser's Default. If the sale and purchase of the Property contemplated by this Agreement is not
consummated on account of Purchaser's default hereunder, Seller shall as its sole and exclusive
remedy retain the Deposit amount as full and complete liquidated damages for such default of
Purchaser. The parties hereby acknowledge that it is impossible to estimate more precisely the
damages which might be suffered by Seller upon Purchaser’s default of this Agreement or any duty
arising in connection or relating herewith. Seller's entitlement to and receipt of the Deposit is intended
not as a penalty, but as full and complete liquidated damages. The right to retain such sums as full
liquidated damages as Seller's sole and exclusive remedy in the event of default or failure to perform
hereunder by Purchaser, is in addition to any liability of Purchaser with respect to its repair and
indemnity obligations set forth above, which are intended to survive termination of this Agreement

35. WAIVER. The failure 1o enforce any particular provision of this Agreement on any particular occasion shall not be
deemed a waiver by either party of any of its rights hereunder, nor shall it be deemed to be a waiver of subsequent or
continuing breaches of that provision, unless such waiver be expressed in a writing signed by the party to be bound.

36. DATE FOR PERFORMANCE. !f the time period by which any right, option or election provided under this Agreement
must be exercised, or by which any act required hereunder must be performed, or by which the Closing must be held,
expires on a Saturday, Sunday or legal or bank holiday, then such time period will be automatically extended through

the close of business on the next following business day.

PREMIZR

CBC Premier Form Commercial Purchase Agreement . f\
Revised 8/22/23 IS /\/ 12:07p.m. 04-22-2024 (‘;}J
1EH1a6s .




37.

38.

3.

40.

41.

42,

43,

44.

FURTHER ASSURANCES. The parties agree that they will each take such steps and execute such documents as
may be reasonably required by the other party or parties to carry out the intent and purposes of this Agreement.

SEVERABILITY. In the event any provision or portion of this Agreement is held by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such holding will not affect the remainder hereof, and the remaining
provisions shall continue in full force and effact to the same extent as would have been the case had such invalid or

unenforceable provision or portion never been a part hereof,

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. The designation Seller and Purchaser as used herein shalt include said parties,
their heirs, successors, and assigns; provided, however, Purchaser may not assign its interest in this Agreement

without the prior written consent of Seller, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld..

CONTACT WITH THIRD PARTIES. During the pendency of this Agreement, Seller may discuss with, or receive the
submission of written back up offers or letters of intent from any third party or entity relating to the purchase of the
Property. Seller shall promptly notify Purchaser in the event Seller should receive a written offer or letter of intent,
and Seller shall advise any such third party or entity of the existence and priority of this Agreement.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties and shall become a
binding and enforceable Agreement among the parties upon full and complete execution and delivery of this
Agreement. No prior verbal or written Agreement shall survive the execution of this Agreement.

AMENDMENT. Any amendment to this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by all the parties in order to be
binding and enforceable against the parties.

RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. Nothing contained herein shall be construed or interpreted as creating a
partnership or joint venture between the parties. It is understood that the relationship is of arm’s length and shall at

all times be and remain that of Purchaser and Seller.

NO RECORDING. Neither this Agreement nor a mernorandum hereof shall be recorded by either party or any of

their representatives.

S
@ 12:07p.m. 04-22-2024 ( }'
27b6b06 h



45. CONFIDENTIALITY. Subject to all other terms of this Agreement, each party agrees to maintain this Agreement, the
information in this Agreement and all information delivered pursuant to this Agreement, as confidential, and each will
not disclose any such information to any other person without the prior written consent of the other party. However,
a party may disclose such confidential information to its legal counsel, to such party’s lender, accountant, real estate
broker, salesperson, or agent, to other professional advisors or agents of the party, provided the recipients of such
information agree to keep such information confidential, and as required by law or legal process.

46. COUNTERPARTS; ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSIONS. This Agreement may be executed in counterpart originals,
each of which when duly executed and delivered shall be deemed an original and all of which when taken together
shall constitute one instrument. This Agreement may be executed and delivered by facsimile or electronic PDF

signatures.

47 OFFER. This Agreement constitutes an offer by Purchaser to purchaser the Property. The offer shall remain valid
until 5:00 pm. on Friday April 19, 2024 and shall be deemed revoked if not accepted by Seller before such time and

date.

48. OTHER PROVISIONS. In addition to the provisions outlined above, the following additional provisions shall apply to

the transaction jss contemplated herein.

/‘////[ /m . 12:07p.m. 04-22-2024
Q‘% BEE— - _—

ADVICE OF COUNSEL. Alt parties are encouraged to seek the advice of independent legal counsel before executing this
Agreement. Such independent counsel may help to determine the marketability of title; understand possible tax
consequences; ascertain that the terms of the sale are adhered to before the transaction is closed; and provide advice
with respect to all notices and other important matters related to this Agreement. Purchaser and Seller acknowledge the
importance of abtaining advice from independent counsel and acknowledge that no broker and/or real estate agent is
acting as an attomey or providing legal advice and no broker and/or real estate agent shall be responsible for any loss or

damage resulting from the preparation of this Agreement or any addenda thereto.

3 coLD

-
| (1 P
I’n:s.‘ U

CBC Premier Form ~ Commercial Purchase Agreement }\ )
Revised 8/22/23 12:07p.m. 04-22-2024 NN
c3B8195a,




By signing befow, Purchaser acknowledges having read and received a copy of this Purchase Agreement.

For Purchaser: Gravel Development Group, LLC Witnesses:

[ OR ) 12:07p.m. 04-22-2024
447262

By: Brett Nixon

Its: Sole Member

@ 12:07p.m. 04-22-2024 W
b0cfo50

\

o



i
Seller accepts this Agreement on this z i#\ day of A{F Iy ( , 20 Qy at % / ‘SK(AM@Z with the

following

With conditions: /z/ A ﬂ% 12:07p.m. 04-22-2024
i 4 ., A 9785e40

. or & without qualification.

By signing below, Seller acknowledges having read and received a copy of this Agreement. If this Agreement is signed
by Seller without any modification, the acceptance date stated herein shall be the Effective Date of the Agreement.

If additional conditions are stipulated herein, Seller gives Purchaser until the of , 20, at

(AM/PM) to provide its written acceptance of the counter conditions stated herein.

For Seller: Witnesses:

u;: NN e [

. DM~ T mee=
w moolper [/ *'

FT§ COLDWELL BANKER
hid COMMERCIAL "™

CBC Premier Fomm — Commercial Purchase Agreement

Revised 8/22/23
3 /\J 12:07p.m. 04-22-2024



Purchaser acknowledges receipt of Seller's acceptance of Purchaser's offer. If the acceptance was subject to changes
from Purchaser's offer, Purchaser agrees to accept those changes, with all other terms and conditions remaining
unchanged. If this Agreement is signed by Purchaser without any modification, then the date stated as Purchase's
Receipt of Acceptance shall then become the Effective Date of this Agreement.

12:08p.m. 04-22-2024

Seller has accepted this Agreement on this day of .20, at (AM/PM)

For Purchaser: Gravel Development Group, LLC Witnesses:

(Bt )

By: Brett Nixon

Its: Sole Member

1558 axtord_4 1 24.30C

@ 12:08p.m. 04-22-2024 Py
bo71d97 {



